
Bibliography

- AAVV (2005) *Global Research Seminar Knowledge Society vs. Knowledge Economy: knowledge, power, and politics*, UNESCO, SESI.
- AAVV (2006a) "A Nova Estratégia de Lisboa da UE serve a Portugal?", *Economia Global e Gestão / Global Economics and Management Review* (1/2006), Lisboa: ISCTE Business School.
- AAVV (2006b) *Bank of America Study of High Net-Worth Philanthropy - Initial Report* (October) Indiana University Center on Philanthropy. Available at: http://newsroom.bankofamerica.com/file.php/mr_bankofamerica/spinsite_docfiles/295/BAC%20Study%20of%20HNW%20Philanthropy%2010-26-06.FINAL.pdf
- AAVV (2006c) *Delivering the Lisbon goals: The role of macro-economic policy*. Brussels: ETUI-REHS
- AAVV (2006) *Moving Europe towards the knowledge-based society and gender equality: policies and performances*. Brussels: ETUI-REHS
- AGHION, P. and HOWIT, P. (1998) *Endogenous Growth Theory*, Cambridge, MA: MIT Press.
- ALESINA, A and GAVAZZI, Francesco (2006) *The Future of Europe – Reform or Decline*, Cambridge: MIT Press.
- ALESINA, A and PEROTTI, R. (2004) "The European Union: A politically incorrect view", *The Journal of Economic Perspectives*, 18 (4), Fall, pp.27-48.
- ALIBONI, R. (2005) "The geopolitical implications of the European Neighbourhood Policy", *European Foreign Affairs Review* (10).
- ARCHIBUGI, D. and COCO, A. (2005) "Is Europe Becoming the Most Dynamic Knowledge Economy in the World?", *Journal of Common Market Studies*, 43(3), pp.433-459.
- ASHIAGBOR, Diamond (2005) *The European Employment Strategy: Labour Market Regulation and New Governance*, Oxford: Oxford University Press.

- AUBERT, J-E. and REIFFERS, J-L. eds (2003) *Knowledge economies in MENA: towards new development strategies*, Washington: World Bank.
- AURORA, G. S. (2004) *Poverty and Economic Reforms - The Social Concerns*. New Delhi: Academic Foundation in association with ISEC.
- BARROSO, J. M. (2006) *Speech at the final press conference*, EU - U.S. Summit, Vienna, Austria June, 2006. Available at: http://ec.europa.eu/comm/external_relations/us/sum06_06/index.htm
- BARYSCH, Katinka (2005) *Embracing the Dragon: The EU's partnership with China*, London: Centre for European Reform.
- BAILY, M. and KIRKEGAARD, J.F (2004) *Transforming the European Economy*, Washington: IIE.
- BHATTACHARYA, B.B. and SABYASACHI, Kar (2006) *Macroeconomic Reforms, Growth and Stability*, New Delhi: Oxford University Press.
- BLACKBURN, R. (2002) *Banking on Death: Or, Investing in Life: The History and Future of Pensions*, London: Verso Publ.
- BORGER, C. et al.(2006) "Health Spending Projections Through 2015: Changes on the Horizon", *Health Affairs Web Exclusive* W61: 22 February.
- BREDGARD, Thomas and LARSEN, Flemming eds (2005) *Employment Policy from different angles*, Copenhagen: DJOF Publishing.
- BÜCHERL, Wolfgang and JANSEN, Thomas eds. (1999) *Globalization and Social Governance in Europe and the United States*, available at: http://ec.europa.eu/comm/cdp/working-paper/globalisation_and_social_gov_en.pdf.
- BUSH, V. (1945). "Science the Endless Frontier - A Report to the President by Vannevar Bush, Director", *Office of Scientific Research and Development* United States Government Printing Office, Washington: July, 1945.
- CARDOSO, Fernando Jorge coord (2007) *Diplomacia, Cooperação e Negócios - o Papel dos Actores Externos em Angola e Moçambique*. Lisbon: IEEI.
- CASPARI, V., RUBART, J. and GÜNTHER, R. (2006) "Education, research and economic growth - some tests for the US and Germany", in Mund-schenk, S. Stierle, M., Schütz, U. and Traistaru, I. *Competitiveness and Growth in Europe* Cheltenham: Edward Elgar Publ. pp. 227-249.
- CASTELLS, Manuel (2003) *A galáxia internet: reflexões sobre internet*. Negócios e Sociedade/Fundação Calouste Gulbenkian.
- Committee on Prospering in the Global Economy of the 21st Century et al. (2007) *Rising Above the Gathering Storm: Energizing and Employing America for a Brighter Economic Future*. Washington DC: National Academies Press
- Council On Competitiveness (2006) *Competitiveness Index: Where America Stands*, Washington: Council on Competitiveness.
- _____ *Innovate America: Thriving in a World of Challenge and Change*, Washington: Council on Competitiveness.
- DALE, W. Jorgenson and MOTOHASHI, Kazuhuki (2005) "Information tech-

- nology and the Japanese economy?" *Journal of the Japanese and International Economies*, Volume 19 (4), December, pp. 460–481.
- DALY, K. (2005). "The Lisbon Strategy and the Future of European Growth" *Global Economic Paper* (121) New York: Goldman Sachs.
- Danish Ministry of Economy (2005). *Reflections on Structural Reforms in the EU* July 1
- DAVERI, F. (2002) "The new economy in Europe, 1992–2001", *Oxford Review of Economic Policy*, 18 (3) pp.345–362.
- DE LA DEHESA, G. (2004) *Quo vadis Europe? The persistent economic underperformance of the European Union relative to the United States*, Madrid: Mimeo.
- DE NEGRI, J.A.; SALERNO, M.S. (2005) *Inovações, Padrões Tecnológicos e Desempenho das Firms Industriais Brasileiras*, Brasília: Ipea.
- DOBRIANSKY, Paula J. (2003) *Science, Technology, and Foreign Policy: The Essential Triangle*, Remarks to the Council of Scientific Society Presidents, Washington, DC. Available in www.state.gov/g/rls/rm/2003/20250.htm
- DUDERSTADT, J. J. (2006) "University-Industry-Government Partnerships for a 21st Century Global Knowledge-Driven Economy: An American perspective", in Weber, L. E. & Duderstadt, J. J. eds., *Universities and Business Partnering for the Knowledge Society*, London: Economica.
- Economist (2000) "The good European" *The Economist* Vol. 354 Issue 8158, February 19th, p.20.
- ENRIGHT, Michael (2001) *Enhancing SME Competitiveness: The OECD Bologna Ministerial Conference*, Paris, OECD Background Paper for Workshop 2.
- ESPING-ANDERSEN, G. (1990) *The Three Worlds of Welfare Capitalism*, Cambridge: Polity Press.
- Europolitics (2006) "European business summit: UNICE sets out its stall for European Council", *Europolitics*, 21 March, Europe Information Service.
- Forrester Research (2007) "Timeline" of *Forrester Research*. Available at: www.forrester.com/timeline/
- FREEMAN, R. B. (2006). "Searching for the EU Social Dialogue Model", *National Bureau of Economic Research Working Paper 12306* Cambridge, MA, June, 2006. Available at: www.nber.org/papers/w12306
- FRIED, D. (2005). Foreign Press Center Briefing, New York, September 19, 2005. Available at: <http://fpc.state.gov/fpc/53530.htm>
- FORAY, Dominique (2004) *The Economics of Knowledge*, Cambridge: The MIT Press.
- GEFFKEN, Rolf (2006) *Labour and trade unions in China*, Brussels: ETUI-REHS.
- GRASLAND, C. and BECKOUCHE, P. (2007) "North-South Regionalism", *Lincoln Research Seminar*, (May 3–4, 2007), Luxembourg. Available at: http://ideas.repec.org/p/hal/papers/halshs-00138851_v3.html.
- GROOT, H., MAHUIS, R. & TANG, P. (2006) "Is the American model Miss World? Choosing between the Anglo-Saxon model and a European-

- style alternative”, in Mundschenk, S. Stierle, M., Schütz, U. & Traistaru, I. *Competitiveness and Growth in Europe* Cheltenham, UK: Edward Elgar Publ. pp.127-155.
- HAMILTON, D. S & QUINLAN, J. P. (2007) *Transatlantic Economy 2006: Annual survey of jobs, trade and investment between the United States and Europe*, Baltimore: Center for Transatlantic Relations, Johns Hopkins University Press.
- HAYASHI, Fumio and PRESCOTT, Edward (2002) “The 1990s in Japan: A Lost Decade,” *Review of Economic Dynamics*, Vol. 5 (1), February, pp. 206-235.
- HE, Chuanqi (1998) “Knowledge Economy and China’s Modernization,” *Guangming Daily*, 7 April.
- _____ (1999) “Knowledge Economy and Second Modernization,” *Science & Technology Review* (6): 3-4.
- _____ (1999b) *Second Modernization*, Beijing: High Education Press.
- HOCKING, Brain (1993) *Localizing Foreign Policy: Non-Central Governments and Multilayered Diplomacy*, London: St.Martin’s Press
- INKLAAR, R., O’MAHONY M. and TIMMER M. (2003) *ICT and Europe’s productivity performance: Industry level growth account comparisons with the United States*, Research Memorandum (68), Groningen: GGDC.
- INSTITUTE OF EUROPEAN STUDIES/CHINESE ACADEMY OF SCIENCE (2006) *Annual Development Europe Report 2005-2006*, China Social Science Publisher.
- JACKSON, Robert (1993) *Quasi-States – Sovereignty, International Relations and the Third World*, Cambridge: Cambridge University Press.
- JANSSEN, R. and WATT, A. (2005) *Innovation and competitiveness: Comparing the UK, Germany and the US*, European Economic and Employment policy Brief (4/05), Brussels: ETUI.
- JARBOE, Kenan Patrick (1998) “Globalization: One World, Two Versions,” *Forward Studies Unit, European Commission, Brussels*, 19-20 November, available at: www.cap.lmu.de/transatlantic/download/jarboe.doc
- JOFFÉ, E.G.H. (2007) “Europe and Islam: partnership or peripheral dependence?”, in Armstrong W. and Anderson J. eds (2007) *The geopolitics of European Union enlargement*, Routledge
- KELLEY, J. (2006) “New wine in old wineskins: policy adaptation in the European Neighbourhood Policy”, *Journal of Common Market Studies* (44) 1.
- KOK, Wim coord. (2004) *Facing the Challenge – The Lisbon strategy for Growth and employment*, Report from the High Level Group.
- KRUEGER, Alan B. and SOLOW Robert M. eds (2001) *The Roaring Nineties: Can Full Employment Be Sustained?*, New York: The Russell Sage Foundation and The Century Foundation Press.
- KURIAN, Nimmi (2001) *Emerging China and India’s Policy Options*, New Delhi: Lancer Publishers & Distributors.
- LAVENEX, S. and WALLACE, W. (2005) “Justice and Home Affairs”, in Wallace H., Wallace W. and Pollak M. eds, *Policy-making in the EU*, OUP (Oxford).

- LIDDLE, Roger and RODRIGUES, Maria João eds. (2004) *Economic Reform in Europe: Priorities for the Next Five Years*, London: Policy Network.
- LORENZ, Edward and LUNDEVALL, Bengt-Ake eds. (2006) *How European Economies Learn – Coordinating Competing Models*, Oxford: Oxford University Press.
- MANN, Catherine (2006) *Accelerating the Globalization of America: The role for Information Technology*, Washington: Peterson Institute for International Economics.
- MOGENSEN, Urlik Bützow, LENAIN, Patrick and ROYUELA-MORA, Vicente (2005) *The Lisbon Strategy at midterm expectations and reality*, Warsaw: CASE – Center for Social and Economic Research
- MEISTER, C. and VERSAPAGEN, B. (2006). "European productivity gaps: Is R&D the Solution?", in Mundschenk, S. Stierle, M., Schütz, U. & Traistaru, I. *Competitiveness and Growth in Europe* Cheltenham, UK: Edward Elgar Publ. pp.158-173.
- MICHALET (2000) *La seduction des Nations ou comme attirer les investissements*, Paris: Economica.
- MICHELMANN, Hans and SOLDATOS, P. eds. (1990), *Federalism and International Relations: The Role of Subnational Units*, Oxford: Clarendon Press.
- MOISI, Dominique (2001) "The Knowledge-Based Society: Beyond the IT Revolution," Paper presented at the Annual EU-Japan Journalists Conference, *Reacting to the Knowledge-Based Society: European and Japanese Views*, Dublin, 7-9 March.
- MORA, J. G. (2005) "Mobilising funding for increased investment", Conference Enabling European Higher Education to make its Full Contribution to the Knowledge Economy and Society. Brussels, 10 February. Available at: http://europa.eu.int/comm/education/policies/2010/doc/conference2005/workshop_Ljose-gines-mora_paper.pdf
- MUNDSCHENK, S., STIERLE, M., STIERLE-VON SCHUTZ, U., TRAISTARU-SIEDSCHLAG, I., (2006) *Competitiveness and Growth in Europe: Lessons and Policy Implications for the Lisbon Strategy*, Cheltenham: Edward Elgar.
- National Intelligence Council (NIC) (2004) *Mapping the Global Future: 2020 Project* Available at: www.foia.cia.gov/2020/2020.pdf .
- NEVES, Miguel Santos (2006) *The Knowledge Regions and innovation in the era of globalization – challenges and opportunities for Europe and Asia*, ASEF Lecture Tours, September (forthcoming)
- OECD (1996) *The Knowledge-Based Economy*, Paris.
- ÖZDEN, Çağlar (2006) *Brain drain in the MENA: the patterns under the surface*, Social and Economic Affairs, United Nations Secretariat (Beirut), UN/POP/EGM/2006/10
- PALLEMAERTS, Marc and AZMANOVA, Alben (2006) *The European Union and Sustainable Development – Internal and External Dimensions*, Brussels: VUBPress.

- PASCUAL, Amparo Serrano and JEPSEN, Maria (2006) *Unwrapping the European social model*, Bristol: The Policy Press.
- POLANY, Karl I (1944) *The Great Transformation*, Boston: Beacon Press.
- PONTUSSON, Jonas (2006) *Inequality and Prosperity: Social Europe vs. Liberal America*, Cornell University Press.
- Presidência da República (2006) *A Sociedade em Rede: Do Conhecimento à Acção Política*, "Debates da Presidência da República", Lisboa: Imprensa Nacional Casa da Moeda
- Public Policy Institute of California (2006) "Special Survey on the Environment: Californians Believe Global Warming Clock Is Ticking" PPIC Press Release San Francisco, CA July 26. Available at: www.ppic.org/main/pressrelease.asp?i=634.
- PUTNAM, Robert. (1993) *Making Democracy Work: Civic Traditions in Modern Italy*, Princeton: Princeton University Press.
- RAMO, Joshua Cooper (2004) *The Beijing Consensus*. London: Foreign Policy Centre Paper.
- RIFKIN, J. (2004) *The European Dream. How Europe's Vision of the Future is Quietly Eclipsing the American Dream*, New York: Tarcher.
- _____ (2005) "Why the European Dream Is Worth Saving", *Spiegel International*, July 28, 2005.
- Robert Huggins and Associates (2006) *World Knowledge Competitiveness Index 2005*.
- RODRIGUES, Maria João (2003a) *European Policies for a Knowledge Economy*, Cheltenham and Northampton (MA): Edward Elgar.
- _____ (2003b) *A Agenda Económica e Social da União Europeia – A Estratégia de Lisboa*, Lisboa: Dom Quixote.
- _____ ed. (2003c) *The New Knowledge Economy in Europe*, Cheltenham and Northampton (MA): Edward Elgar.
- _____ (2004a) *Background paper SSH-ERA - For the mid-term review of the Lisbon strategy*, November 2004. (http://europa.eu.int/comm/research/social-sciences/htm/advisory_group_sshera.htm)
- _____ dir. (2004b) *Vers une société européenne de la connaissance – La Stratégie de Lisbonne (2000-2010)*, Bruxelles : Institut D'Études Européennes.
- _____ (2005) *The Debate over Europe and the Lisbon Strategy for Growth and Jobs*, Background Paper 2005.10.21.
- _____ (2006) *The European Strategy for Growth and Jobs. The Lisbon Agenda: A User's Guide*, October.
- _____ NEVES, Arminda e GODINHO, Manuel Mira coord. (2003) *Para uma Política de Inovação em Portugal*, Lisboa: Dom Quixote.
- ROMER, P. M. (1986). "Increasing returns and endogenous growth" *Journal of Political Economy*, (94), 5, 1002-1037.
- _____ (1990). "Endogenous technological change", *Journal of Political Economy* (98) 71-102.

- ROOM, G. (2005) "Policy benchmarking in the European Union: Indicators and ambiguities" *Policy Studies*, (26), 2, pp.117-132
- ROSENAU, James (2002) "Governance in a New Global Order," in Held and McGrew eds., *Governing Globalization: Power, Authority and Global Governance*. Cambridge: Cambridge Polity Press (70-86).
- SAKELLAROPOULOS, Theodoros; BERGHMAN, Jos eds. (2004) *Connecting Welfare Diversity within the European Social Model* Social Europe Series (9), Schoten: Intersentia.
- SAPIR, André et al. (2004) *An Agenda for a Growing Europe – The Sapir Report*, Oxford: Oxford University Press.
- SEGAL, Adam (2004) "Is America Losing Its Edge", *Foreign Affairs*, November/December.
- SCHARF, Fritz W. (2001) *What have We Learned? Problem-Solving Capacity of the Multilevel European Polity*, available at: www.mpi-fg-koeln.mpg.de/pu/workpap/wp01-6/wp01-6.html.
- SCHMITTER, P.C. (2003), "Neo-neo-functionalism", in Wiener A. and Diez T. eds., *European interaction theory*, OUP (Oxford)
- SEN, Amartya (1999) *Development as Freedom*, Oxford; Oxford University Press.
- _____ (2002) *Rationality and Freedom*, Harvard: Harvard Belknap Press.
- SINHA, R. K. (2004) *India 2025: Social Economic and Political Stability*, New Delhi: Shipra Publications.
- SMITH, K. (2005) "The outsiders: the European Neighbourhood Policy", *International Affairs* (81) 4.
- SOETE, L. (2001). "The new economy: A European perspective", in Archibugi, D. & Lundvall B. eds. *The Globalising Learning Economy*, Oxford: Oxford University Press.
- TELO, M. (2006) *Europe: a Civilian Power?* Basingstoke and New York: Palgrave Macmillan.
- THORN, J. M. (2005) "European Union in Crisis after Rejection of Constitution," 28 June, at: <http://euobserver.com>
- TIAN, Dwen (2005) *European Social Policy and European Integration*, Social Science Literature.
- TOCCI, N. (2005) "Does the ENP respond to the EU's post-Enlargement challenges?," *The International Spectator*, XL, 1.
- TODARO, M. (1989) *Economic Development in the Third World*, London: Longmans.
- Transatlantic Trends (2006) "Transatlantic Trends Key Findings 2006", Washington D.C.: *Transatlantic Trends*, September.
- UNITED NATIONS DEVELOPMENT PROGRAMME (2006) *Human Development Report 2006*, Geneva.
- VELLOSO, J. P. ed. (2002) *Brasil e a Economia do Conhecimento*, Rio de Janeiro: José Olympio.

- VOS, K. J. (2005) "Americanisation of the EU Social Model?" *International Journal of Comparative Labour Law & Industrial Relations*, Autumn, (21) 3, 355-367.
- WANLIN, Aurore (2006) *The Lisbon Scorecard VI: Will Europe's economy rise again?*, London: Centre for European Reform.
- WATT, A. (2005) *China's new "great leap forward" - A threat to Europe's economy and labour markets*, Mitbestimmung.
- WEBER, T. (2007) "Davos misses out on the big bang" Business Editor, *BBC News*, Davos, Switzerland. Available at: <http://news.bbc.co.uk/1/hi/business/6308117.stm>.
- World Economic Forum (2006) *India Economic Summit Report, 22nd India Economic Summit*, New Dehli 26-28 November.
- World Economic Forum (2006b) *World Competitiveness Index 2006*.
- WULF, W. (2004) *National Academy of Engineering 2004 Annual Meeting, President's Remarks*, National Academy of Engineering, Washington, D.C.
- YUAN, Jiang, YAODONG, Liu, MCGUCKIN, Robert H., SPIEGELMAN, Matthew, JIANYI, Xu (2004) *China's Experience with Productivity and Jobs*, New York: The conference Board.
- ZEITLIN, Jonathan and POCHET, Philippe eds. (2005) *The Open Method of Co-ordination in Action: The European Employment and Social Inclusion Strategies*, Brussels: PIE-Peter Lang.
- ZGAJEWSKI, Tania and HAJJAR, Kalila (2005) *The Lisbon Strategy: Which failure? Whose failure? And why?*, 'Egmont paper' (6) Brussels: Royal Institute For International Relations (IRRI - KIIB).
- ZHOU, Hong (2004) "EU Social Policy Studies in China," *Asia Europe Journal* 2-3 (19), Spring.
- _____ (2000) "The Third Way and the EU Social Model," *Europe* (9) 2000, Beijing, China.
- _____ (2002) "Can Social Security System be Globalised?" *World Economy* (8) Beijing, China.
- _____ (2003) "Social Benchmarking and its Theoretical Impact on EU Social Integration," *Chinese Journal of Demographical Sciences* (3) 2003, Beijing, China

Official Documents

Europe

- Council of the European Union (2000) *Fight against poverty and social exclusion – Definition of objectives for Nice European Council – Political agreement*, Ref. 12189/00, 10.10.2000.
- Council of the European Union (2005a) *Integrated Guidelines: Broad Economic Policy Guidelines*, 10667/05, 28.06.2005.
- Council of the European Union (2005b) *Guidelines for the employment policies of the Member States*, 10205/05, 05.07.2005.

Council Decision nr. 969/2006/EC of 18 December 2006 concerning the Seventh Framework Programme of the European Atomic Energy Community (Euratom) or nuclear research and training activities (2007 to 2011)

Council (2006) *Conclusions on multilateral surveillance of the 2006 Lisbon national reform programmes*, 2766th Ecofin meeting, 28 November 2006

European Commission (1994) *Growth, competitiveness, employment – The challenges and ways forward into the 21st Century*, Luxembourg: Office for Official Publications of the European Communities.

European Commission (2000) *Benchmarking Enterprise Policy – First results from the Scoreboard*, SEC (2000) 1842, 27.10.2000.

European Commission (2000a) Communication: *eLearning – Designing tomorrow's education*, COM (2000) 318 final, 24.05.2000.

European Commission (2000b) Communication: *Innovation in a Knowledge-driven Economy*, COM (2000) 567, 20.09.2000.

European Commission (2000c) Communication: *Towards a European Research Area*, COM (2000) 06, 18.01.2000.

European Commission (2000d) *eEurope 2002 An Information Society for all*, Action Plan prepared for Feira European Council, 14.06.2000

European Commission (2000e) *Financial Services Action Plan – Second Progress Report* (2000), COM (2000) 336 final, 30.05.2000.

European Commission (2000f) *Social Policy Agenda*, COM (2000) 379 final, 28.06.2000

European Commission (2001a) Communication: *A Sustainable Europe for a Better World: a European Union Strategy for Sustainable Development*, COM (2001) 264 final, 15.05.2001.

European Commission (2001b) Communication: *Realising the European Union's potential: consolidating and extending the Lisbon Strategy*, COM (2001) 79, 08.02.2001.

European Commission (2001c) *Report on the future objectives of education systems*, COM (2001) 59 final, 31.01.2001.

European Commission (2002a), Communication from the Commission: *Industrial Policy in an Enlarged Europe*, COM (2002) 714 final, 11.12.2002

European Commission (2002b) *Contribution to the Spring European Council in Barcelona: The Lisbon Strategy - Making Change Happen*, COM (2002) 14 final, 15.01.2002.

European Commission (2003a) Communication: *Choosing to grow: Knowledge, Innovation and Jobs in a Cohesive Society – Report to the Spring European Council, 21 March 2003 on the Lisbon strategy of economic, social and environmental renewal*, COM (2003) 5 final, 14.01.2003.

European Commission (2003b) *Green Paper on Entrepreneurship in Europe*, COM (2003) 27 final, 21.01.2003.

- European Commission (2003c) *Communication: The role of the universities in the Europe of knowledge*, COM (2003) 58, 05.02.2003.
- European Commission (2003d) *Communication: Innovation Policy: Updating the Union's Approach in the Context of the Lisbon Strategy*, COM (2003) 112 final, 11.03.2003.
- European Commission (2003e) *Communication from the Commission on the Broad Guidelines of the Economic Policies of the Member States and the Community (for the 2003-2005 period)*, COM (2003) 170 final, 08.04.2003.
- European Commission (2003f) *Proposal for a Council decision on Guidelines for the Employment Policies of the Member States*, COM (2003) 176 final, 08.04.2003.
- European Commission (2003g) *Communication: Investing in Research: an Action Plan for Europe*, COM (2003) 226 final, 30.04.2003.
- European Commission (2003h) *Education & Training 2010 – The Success of the Lisbon Strategy Hinges on Urgent Reforms*, (Draft joint interim report on the implementation of the detailed work programme on the follow-up of the objectives of education and training systems in Europe), COM (2003) 685 final, 11.11.2003.
- European Commission (2003i) *Joint Employment Report*.
- European Commission (2003j) *Modernising Social Protection for More and Better Jobs – a Comprehensive Approach Contributing to Making Work Pay*, REF. COM (2003) 842 final, 30.12.2003.
- European Commission (2003k) *Proposal for a Council Decision on Guidelines for Member States' employment policies for the year 2003*, 13.02.2003
- European Commission (2003l) *Some Key Issues in Europe's Competitiveness – Towards an Integrated Approach*, COM (2003) 704 final, 21.11.2003.
- European Commission (2004) "Kok report calls for more determined political action to revitalise Lisbon strategy" *Press Release from the European Commission* Brussels, November 3. (http://ec.europa.eu/growthandjobs/pdf/kok_press_release_en.pdf).
- European Commission (2004b) *European Neighbourhood Policy: Strategy Paper*, COM (2004) 373 final, 12.05.2004.
- European Commission, Directorate-General for Employment & Social Affairs (2004) *Report of the High Level Group on the Future of Social Policy in an enlarged European Union*, Oliver Dutheillet de Lamothe (coord.) with the collaboration of Tony Atkinson, Florian Gerster, Maria João Rodrigues, Ludek Rychly and Dieter Schimanke, May.
- European Commission (2005a) *Communication from the Commission to the Council – Draft Joint Employment Report 2004/2005*, COM (2005) 13 final, 27.01.2005.

- European Commission (2005b) *Communication - izoio - A European Information Society for growth and employment*, COM(2005) 229 final, 1.6.2005.
- European Commission (2005c) Green Paper "Confronting demographic change: a new solidarity between the generations", COM (2005) 94 final, 16.03.2005.
- European Commission (2005d) *L'Agenda social 2005-2010: Une Europe sociale dans l'économie mondiale des emplois et des nouvelles chances pour tous*.
- European Commission (2005e) *Working together for growth and jobs, a new start for the Lisbon Strategy*, Communication to the spring European Council, COM (2005) 24.
- European Commission (2005f) *Cohesion Policy in Support of Growth and Jobs: Community Strategic Guidelines, 2007-2013*, SEC (2005) 0299, 05.07.2005.
- European Commission (2005g) *Communication to the Council and the European Parliament, Common Actions for Growth and Employment: The Community Lisbon Programme*, COM (2005) 330 final, 20.07.2005.
- European Commission (2005h) *Communication from the Commission on the Social Agenda*, COM (2005) 33 final, 09.02.2005.
- European Commission (2005i) *Implementing the Community Lisbon Programme: Communication from the Commission - More Research and Innovation - Investing for Growth and Employment: A Common Approach*, COM(2005) 488 final
- European Commission (2006a) *Communication: A Citizen's Agenda: Delivering Results for Europe*, COM(2006) 211 final, 10.05.2006.
- European Commission (2006b) *Communication on Efficiency and equity in European education and training systems*, COM (2006) 481 final, 8.9.2006.
- European Commission (2006c) *Communication sur Éducation et formation des adultes: il n'est jamais trop tard pour apprendre*, COM(2006) 614 final, 23.10.2006
- European Commission (2006d) *Communication: Putting knowledge into practice: A broad-based innovation strategy for the EU*, COM (2006) 502 final, 13.9.2006.
- European Commission (2006e) *Community Programme for Employment and Social Solidarity (Progress) - General Guidelines for the Implementation of the Community Action Programme for Employment and Social Solidarity Progress (2007-2013)*, European Commission, DG Employment, Social Affairs and Equal Opportunities, Progress/003/2006, 21.12.2006.
- European Commission (2006f) *Green Paper - Modernising labour law to meet the challenges of the 21st century*, COM (2006) 708 final, 22.11.2006.
- European Commission (2006g) *Annual Report on the Lisbon Strategy 2006*, COM (2006) 30, 12.12.2006

- European Commission (2006h) *Communication - Working together, working better: A new framework for the open coordination of social protection and inclusion policies in the European Union*, COM(2006) 706 final, 22.12.2006.
- European Commission (2007a) *A coherent framework of indicators and benchmarks for monitoring progress towards the Lisbon objectives in education and training*, COM (2007) 61 final, 21.02.2007.
- European Commission (2007b) *Communication: A Single Market for Citizens*, COM(2007) 60 final, 21.02.2007.
- European Commission (2007c) *Communication: Proposal for the Joint Report on Social Protection and Social Inclusion 2007*, COM (2007) 13 final, 19.01.2007.
- European Commission (2007d) *Green Paper - The European Research Area: New Perspectives*, COM (2007) 161 final, 04.04.2007.
- European Commission, *Recommendation for a Council Recommendation on the implementation of Member States' employment policies*.
- European Council (2000a) *Document from the Presidency - "Employment, Economic Reforms and Social Cohesion - Towards a Europe based on innovation and knowledge"*, 5256/00, 12.01.2000.
- European Council (2000b) *Conclusions of the Lisbon European Council*, SN 100/00, 23-24 March 2000.
- European Council (2002) *Conclusions of the Barcelona European Council*, SN 100/02.
- European Council (2003) *Conclusions of the Brussels European Council*, SN 100/03, 20-21 March 2003.
- European Council (2005a) *Conclusions of the Stockholm European Council*, SN 200/01
- European Council (2005b) *Conclusions of the Brussels European Council*, Council of the European Union 7619/05, 22-23 March 2005 (Extract).
- European Council (2005c) *Conclusions of the Brussels European Council*, Council of the European Union 10255/05, 16-17 June 2005 (Extract).
- European Council (2006) *Renewed EU Sustainable Development Strategy*, 10117/06, 09.06.2006.
- European Council (2007) *Key Issues paper - Contribution of the Council (ECOFIN) to the Spring European Council 2007*, 6862/07, 27.02.2007
- European Investment Bank (2001) *Innovation 2000 Initiative: From Lisbon to Stockholm: the EIB's 12th one year after - Progress and perspectives in implementation*, March.
- European Parliament (2001) *Report on the Spring 2001 European Council: The Lisbon process and the path to be followed*, A5-0034/2001, 30.01.2001.

European Parliament, Council of the European Union (2002) *Decision concerning the 6th Framework Programme of the European Community for Research, Technological development and Demonstration activities, contributing to the creation of the European Research Area and to innovation* (2002-2006), PE-CONS 3635/02, 27.06.2002.

European Parliament, Council of the European Union (2006a) *Decision nr. 1982/2006/EC of the European Parliament and of the Council of December 2006 concerning the Seventh Framework Programme of the European Community for research, technological development and demonstration activities* (2007 to 2013).

European Parliament, Council of the European Union (2006b) *Décision n°1639/2006/CE du Parlement Européen et du Conseil du 24 octobre établissant un programme-cadre pour l'innovation et la compétitivité* (2007-2013); Presidency of the European Union (2000), Note on the ongoing experience of the open method of co-ordination, 9088/00, 14.06.2000.

Official documents - Other Regions

Cabinet Office of Government of Japan (2005) *Annual Report on the Japanese Economy and Public Finance 2005 - No Gains Without Reforms V*,

Cabinet Office of Government of Japan (2006) *Annual Report on The Japanese Economy and Public Finance - Japanese Economy Heading for New Growth Era with Conditions for Growth Restored - Summary*.

Cabinet Office of Government of Japan (2006) *New Economic Growth Strategy*

Cabinet of the Prime Minister of Japan, *Interim Report "Innovation 25" - Creating the future, challenging unlimited possibilities*, Innovation 25 Strategy Council, 26 February 2007. Available at www.kantei.go.jp/foreign/innovation/interimbody

Central Committee of the Communist Party of China (2004a) *Harmonious Socialist Society*, The Sixth Plenary Session of the 16th Central Committee.

Central Committee of the Communist Party of China (2004b) *11th Five-Year Plan for National Economy and Social Development*, The Sixth Plenary Session of the 16th Central Committee.

China Modernization Research Centre, Chinese Academy of Sciences (2005) *China Modernization Report 2005*.

China Modernization Research Centre, Chinese Academy of Sciences (2006) *China Modernization Report 2006*.

China Modernization Research Centre, Chinese Academy of Sciences (2007) *China Modernization Report 2007*.

Governo Federal do Brasil (2003) *Política Industrial, Tecnológica e de Comércio Exterior*.

Núcleo de Assuntos Estratégicos da Presidência da República (2004) "Projecto Brasil 3 Tempos 2007,2015,2022," *Cadernos NAE*, 1, Julho.

Planning Commission, Government of India (2002) *10th Five Year Plan (2002-2007)*

Science Council of Japan (2005) *Japan Vision 2050: Principles of Strategic Science and Technology Policy Toward 2020*, April. (www.scj.go.jp/en/vision2050.pdf).

Science Council of Japan (2007) *The Future Society Envisioned by the Science Community* (www.scj.go.jp/ja/info/kohyo/pdf/kohyo-20-t32e.pdf).

The White House (2006) *American Competitiveness Initiative: Leading the World in Innovation*. Available at <http://whitehouse.gov/stateoftheunion/2006/aci>

Useful Links

Brazil

Agência Brasileira de Desenvolvimento Industrial

www.abdi.com.br

Confederação Nacional da Indústria

www.cni.org.br/

"Inovação" – Universidade de Campinas

www.inovacao.unicamp.br/index-73ed.php

Instituto de Pesquisa Econômica Aplicada (Ipea)

www.ipea.gov.br/default.jsp

Ministério da Ciência e da Tecnologia

<http://acessibilidade.mct.gov.br/index.php/content/view/1.html>

Núcleo de Assuntos Estratégicos, Presidência da República

www.nae.gov.br

Portal da inovação

www.portalinovacao.mct.gov.br.

PROSSIGA - Programa de Informação para Gestão de Ciência, Tecnologia e Inovação do Instituto Brasileiro de Informação em Ciência e Tecnologia

<http://prossiga.ibict.br/>

China

A-Z Index of China's Major Universities

www.gov.cn/misc/2005-11/30/content_113634.htm

China Institute for Reform and Development – China Reform Forum

www.chinareform.org/cgi-bin/index.asp

Chinese Academy of Social Sciences

<http://bic.cass.cn/english/index.asp>

Chinese Academy of Science
<http://english.cas.ac.cn/Eng2003/page/home.asp>
Ministry of Science and Technology of the People's Republic of China
www.most.gov.cn/eng/index.htm
OECD-China Innovation Project
www.oecdsti-china.net/

European Union

Centre for European Policy Studies
www.ceps.be
Centre for European Reform
www.cer.org.uk
CPB Netherlands Bureau for Economic Policy Analysis
www.cpb.nl/eng/
EnviroWindows – European Environment Agency platform for knowledge sharing and development
www.ewindows.eu.org/News/2007/2/new894594
EurActiv – Innovation and Growth
www.euractiv.com/en/innovation
EurActiv – Science and Research
www.euractiv.com/en/science
Eurochambres
www.eurochambres.eu/
European Commission – Growth and Jobs webpage
<http://ec.europa.eu/growthandjobs/>
European Commission – Europe's Information Society
http://ec.europa.eu/information_society/index_en.htm
European Institute of Technology
http://ec.europa.eu/education/policies/educ/eit/index_en.html
European Network of Economic Policy Research Institutes (ENEPRI)
www.enepri.org/
European Patent Office
www.epo.org/index.html
European Science Foundation
www.esf.org/
EuroScience – A European Association for the Promotion of Science and Technology
www.euroscience.org/
European Renewable Energy Centres Agency
www.eurec.be/
PRO INNO Europe
www.proinno-europe.eu/
Bruegel
www.bruegel.org/Public/WebSite.php?ID=2

India

Council of Scientific & Industrial Research

www.csir.res.in/

Department of Science and Technology, Ministry of Science and Technology, Government of India

www.dst.gov.in/

Global Development Network

www.gdnet.org/

India Energy Portal

www.indiaenergyportal.org/index.php

National Institute of Science, Technology and Development Studies

www.nistads.res.in/

National Knowledge Commission, Government of India

<http://knowledgecommission.gov.in/>

The Energies and Research Institute

www.indiaenergyportal.org/index.php

Japan

European Union Institute in Japan

www.euji-tc.org/index.html

EU-Japan Centre for Industrial Cooperation

www.eujapan.com/europe/centre.html

Japanese Society for the Promotion of Science

www.jsps.go.jp/english/index.html

Japan Science and Technology Agency

www.jst.go.jp/EN/

Strategic Program for Building an Asian S&T Community

www.jsps.go.jp/english/e-astrategy/index.html

United States

European Union Centre of Excellence – University of Wisconsin – Madison

<http://eucenter.wisc.edu/>

Science, Technology and Public Policy (STPP) Program, Gerald R. Ford School of Public Policy, University of Michigan

<http://stpp.fordschool.umich.edu/>

Innovate America

<http://innovateamerica.org/index.asp>

Institute for Strategy and Competitiveness – Harvard Business School

www.isc.hbs.edu/

Issues in Science and Technology

www.issues.org/

RAND Corp. Science and Technology Policy Research

www.rand.org/ise/reorganized.html

National Science Foundation (NSF) Science Resources Page

www.nsf.gov/statistics/

White House Office of Science and Technology Policy (OSTP)

www.ostp.gov/

The Carnegie Commission on Science, Technology and Government

<http://phe.rockefeller.edu/ccstg+10/index.html>

The National Academies

www.nationalacademies.org/